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GLOBAL LINK LOGISTICS INCSVERIFIED ANSWER AND

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO MITSUIOSKLINES LTDS
COMPLAINT COUNTERCLAIM AND CROSS CLAIMS

Respondent Global LinkLogistics Inc Global Link hereby submits its Answer and

Affirmative Defenses to Complainant MitsuiOSKLines LtdsMOL Complaint as

follows

I Complainant

A Complainant MitsuiOSKLines Ltd MOL is acorporation organized and existing
under the laws ofJapan MOL is a vessel operating common carrier operating in the US

foreign trades

ANSWER Global Link is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a

belief as to the truth ofthe allegations in pazagraph IA

B MOLs mailing address is 11 Toranomon2chome MinatokuTokyo Japan

Z
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ANSWER Global Link is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a

belief as to the truth of the allegation in pazagraph IB

II Respondents

A Respondent Global Link Logistics Inc Global Link is acorporation organized under
the laws ofDelawaze Global Links mailing address is Lakeside Center 1990 Lakeside

Parkway Suite 300 Tucker Georgia 30084 Global Link is a licensed ocean transportadon
intermediary OTP that operates as anonvessel operating common carrier NVOCC

ANSWER Global Link admits the allegations in pazagraph IIA

B Respondent Olympus Growth Fund III LPOGF is a Delaware limited partnership
having a registered agent at The Corporation Trust Company Corporation Trust Center 1209

Orange Street Wilmington DE 19801 and its principal place ofbusiness at Metro Center One
Station Place Stamford CT 06902 OGF was an owner ofthe respondent Global Link during
periods relevant to this complaint

ANSWER Global Link admits that OGF is aSeller as defined in the Stock Purchase

Agreement dated May 20 2006 Global Link is without knowledge or informarion sufficient to

form abelief as to the truth ofthe remaining allegations in paragraph IIB

C Respondent Olympus Executive FundLP OEF is a Delawaze limited partnership
having aregistered agent at The Corporation Trust Company Corporation Trust Center 1209

Orange Street Wilmington DE 19801 and its principal place ofbusiness at Metro Center One
Station Place Stamford CT 06902 OEF was an ownerofthe respondent Global Link during
periods relevant to this complaint

ANSWER Global Link admits that OEF is a Seller as defined in the Stock Purchase

Agreement dated May 20 2006 Global Link is without knowledge or information sufficient to

form abelief as to the truth ofthe remaining allegations in paragraph IIC

D Respondent Olympus Partners LP Olympus Partners is a Delawaze limited

partnecship having a registered agent at The Corporation TrustCompany Corporation Trust
Center 1209 Orange Street Wilmington DE 19801 and its principal place ofbusiness at Metro
Center One Station Place Stamford CT 06902 Olympus Partners is aprivate equity firm
affiliated with OGF and OEF

ANSWER Global Link admits that Olympus Partners is aprivate equity firm

affiliated with OGF and OEF Global Link is without knowledge or information sufficient to
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form abelief as to the truth ofthe remaining allegations in paragraph IID

E Respondents Louis J Mischianti David Cardenas and Keith Heffeman are the partners
in Olympus Partners with a business address at Metro Center One Station Place Stamford CT
06902 and wereofficers and directors ofGlobal Link during periods relevant to this complaint

ANSWER Global Link admits that Louis J Mischianti David Cardenas and Keith

Heffernan aze principals ofOlympus Partners and that Mischianti Cazdenas and Heffernan

signed the Stock Purchase Agreement dated May 20 2006 as Sellers Global Link is without

knowledge or information sufficient to form abelief as to the truth ofthe remaining allegations

in pazagraph IIE

F Respondent CJR World Enterprises Inc CJR is aFlorida corporation having a

registered agent at Florida Filing and Seazch Services Inc 155 Office Plaza Drive Suite A
Tallahassee FL 32301 and its principal place ofbusiness at 6025 Sandy Springs Circle Atlanta
Georgia CJR was an owner ofGlobal Link during periods relevant to this complaint

ANSWER Global Link admits that CJR is aSeller as defined in the Stock Purchase

Agreement dated May 20 2006 Global Link is without knowledge or information sufficient to

form abelief as to the truth ofthe remaining allegations in pazagaph IIF

G Respondent Chad Rosenberg has abusiness address at 6025 Sandy Springs Circle
Atlanta Georgia Chad Rosenberg is the owner ofCJR and wasan officer and director of Global
Link during periods relevant to this complaint

ANSWER Global Link admits that Chad Rosenberg was an officer director and sole

shareholder ofCJR from at least 2003 through the closing ofthe 2006 Stock Purchase

Agreement Global Link also admits that Rosenberg was an officer and director ofGlobal Link

prior to the 2006 sale and signed the Stock PurchaseAgreement dated May 20 2006 as a Seller

Global Link is without knowledge or information sufTcient to form abelief as to the truth ofthe

remaining allegations in paragaph IIG

III Jurisdiction

This Complaint is being filed pursuant to Section 11aofthe Shipping Act 46USC 41301
MOL is seeking reparations for injuries caused to it by Global Link OGF OEF Olympus
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Paztners Louis J Mischianti David Cardenas Keith Heffeman CJR and Chad Rosenberg
collectively the Respondents as a result oftheir violations ofSections 10a1 and 10d1
of the Shipping Act 46USC 41102a41102c As more particulazly alleged below the

Respondents laowingly and willfully engaged in ascheme to fraudulently obtain ocean

transportation for property for less than the rates andor chazges that would othenvise apply
Moreover as demonstrated by these practices including the prepazation of false documents and
provision offalse information to MOL in violation of 46 CFR 51531ethe Respondents
failed to establish observe and enforce just and reasonable regulations and pracrices relating to
or connected with receiving handling and delivering property

The activities giving rise to this complaint first came to MOLs attention in 2008 when MOL
was contacted in connection with an azbitration proceeding between Respondent Global Link and
Respondents Olympus Partners OEF OGF Mischiand Cazdenas Heffeman CJR Rosenberg
and others

ANSWER To the extent the paragraphs in section III purport to chazacterize the

nature ofthe action no response is required To the extent a response is required Global Link

denies the allegations Global Link denies the remaining allegations in section III

N Statement of Facts and Matters Comolained Of

A MOL began doing business with Global Link on or about May 11 2004

ANSWER Global Link admits the allegations in paragraph NA

B Since May of2004 MOL has entered into 5 service contracts with Global Link having
the following service contract numbers 5159351A04 5159351A05 5159351A06 5159351A07
and 5159351A08

ANSWER Global Link admits the allegations in pazagraph NB

C The service contracts provided bothporttoport rates and porttodoor or through ntes to
inland destinations in the United States At the time each service contract was negotiated Global
Link had an opportunity to negotiate rates to any inland destination required by its customers
The service contracts could also be amended to add new rates if additional destinadons were

required at any time Indeed the contracts were amended on numerous instances More
specifically SC 5159351A04 was amended 32 times SC 5159351A05 was amended 33
times SC 5159351A06 was amended 19 times SC 5159351A07 was amended 24 times and
SC 5159351A08 was amended 6 times

ANSWER Global Link admits that it entered into service contracts with MOL and

states that the service contracts aze the best evidence oftheir contents Global Link further

admits that the service contracts were amended numerous times as reflected in paragraph NC
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Global Link neither admits nor denies the retnaining allegations ofpazagaph NC insofar as they

purport tostate conclusions of law as to which no response is required

D The service contracts entered into between MOL and Global Link were subject to various

tariff rules including the rules relating to diversion defined as achange in the original billed

destination At all times relevant to this complaint MOLs tariff rules required shippers to

request any diversion ofcargo in writing and required the payment ofa diversion charge as well

as the difference in price between the original and new destinations

ANSWER Global Link admits that it entered into service contracts with MOL and

states that the service conhactsaze the best evidence oftheir contents Global Link neither

admits nor denies the remaining allegations ofparagraph IVD insofaz as they putport to state

conclusions oflaw as to which no response is required

E Fmm 2004 through at least 2006 Global Link engaged in a scheme to defraud MOL and

obtain ocean transportation at rates lower than the applicable service contract or tariff rates by
booking cargo to false inland destinations while intending to deliver the cargo to different inland

destinations Global Link referred to this practice with various names including split muting
misbooking andrerouting

ANSWER Global Link admits that historically Global Link engaged in apractice

variously described as split routingmisbooking andrerouting by booking cazgo to false

inland destinations while intending to delivet the cazgo to different inland destinations Global

Link further states that based on this conduct Global Link initiated an azbitration proceeding

before the American Arbitration Association to rewver damages for losses sustained as the result

of fraud and breaches ofcontractual representations by Sellers in wnnection with the 2006 Stock

Purchase Agreement Global Link denies that it defrauded MOL

F This scheme was carried out with the full knowledge and participation ofRespondents
Olympus Partners OEF OGF Mischianti Cazdenas Heffeman CJR and Rosenberg

ANSWER Global Link admits Respondents Rosenberg CJR Cazdenas Heffeman

OEF OGF and Olympus Partners each possessed knowledge ofGlobal Links split routing

Global Link is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the remaining
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allegations ofIVF

G In order to cazry out its scheme Global Link would provide MOL with false information

regazding the ultimate destination ofthe cargo The through billof lading issued by MOL would

reflect the false destination provided by Global Link Inland transportation by truck would be

arranged by MOL from the port ofentry or rail container yard to the false destination The

through rate for transportation to the false destination would be billed by MOL and paid by
Global Link

ANSWER Global Link admits that in connection with the split routing practice

Global Link historically participated in conduct as alleged in paragraph NG Global Link denies

that MOL was not aware of the practices described in pazagraph IVG

H Without MOLs knowledge however Global Link would issue asecond bill of lading
showing the true inland destination Global Link would provide this bill of lading to the hvcking
company and tell the tcucking company to disregazd the instructions received from MOL

ANSWER Global Link denies the allegations in paragraph IVH

I Global Link would divert the cargo in this mannerwithout submitting a request to MOL

in accordance with the service contact and applicable tariff and without paying MOL the

difference in rate or the applicable diversion charges MOL would not even be notifiedofthe

diversion or the true destination ofthe catgo Thus despite MOLs issuance ofa through bill of

lading MOL would have no information regazding the actual destinations of the cazgo or its

wntainers

ANSWER Global Link admits that in connection with the split routing practice

Global Link historically diverted the cazgo without submitting a formal request pursuant to the

service contract and without paying a difference in rates Global Link denies the remaining

allegations in paragraph IVI

J The true destinations that werehidden fram MOL were either points with higher
negotiated contract rates than the true destinations or points with no negotiated rates that Global

Link did not seek to add to the contracts In either instance the rates paid to MOL for

transportation to the sham destinarions were less than the rates that were applicable to the actual

destinations and that should have been paid to MOL by Global Link Obtaining the lower rates

was the reason for the practice and for the concealment ofGlobal Links activities from MOL

ANSWER Global Link admits that in some instances the historical rates paid to MOL

for transportation to the disclosed locarion were less than the rates to the actual location Global

2c3ovi 6



Link further admits that one ofthe reasons for the historical split routing practice was to

reduce Global Links costs Global Link denies the remaining allegations in paragaph IVJ

K In order to conceal the true destinations from MOL Global Link employees created false

invoices addresses and bills of lading Global Link employees wereoften trained and reminded

not to tell representatives ofMOL of the true destination ofgoods that were diverted and in fact
they were trained to lie if they were asked Moreover Global Link employees were taught how

to find real addresses in the false destination cities to avoid tipping offcarriers that the

destinations provided to the carriers were phony

ANSWER Global Link admits that historically certain Global Link employees

created or facilitated false invoices addresses and bills of lading as part ofthe split routing

practice Global Link fiuther admits that at one time Global Link employees were taught to

locate real addresses in the false destination cities in an effort to avoid communicating to certain

ocean carriers that the desrinations provided were false Global Link denies the remaining

allegations in pazagraph IVK

L The purpose and result of Global Links false booking practice was to obtain shipping
services from ocean carriers including MOL at rates better than the rates which Global Link

was othenvise required to pay Global Links scheme resulted in MOL being underpaid by
hundreds ofdollars pet container for thousands of containers causing MOL to suffer damages of

no less than 45 million

ANSWER Global Link admits that one ofthe purposes ofthe historical Global Link

split routing practice was to reduce Global Links costs Global Link denies the remaining

allegations in pazagraph NL

M In August of2008 MOL received a subpoena from Global Link seeking testimony about

the split muting practices in connection with Global Links azbitration with Olympus Partners
OEF OGF Mischianri Cazdenas Heffeman CJR Rosenberg and others At that time MOL

spoke with counsel for Global Link about the practices and MOL advised Global Link that if

such practices occurred they would have been atMOLsexpense MOL accordingly requested a

full accounting of the amounts that were improperly billed and recovery ofsame Global Link

has not provided such an accounting and has not compensated MOL for its damages

ANSWER Global Link admits that it subpoenaed MOL for testimony regazding the

azbitration respondents allegations in support ofcertain defenses to Global Links claims
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particulazly respondents allegation that MOL and certain senior MOL executives lrnew about

condoned and even encouraged the split routing practice MOL did not comply with the

subpoena orpresent a witness to address the respondents allegations Global Link further

admits that counsel for MOL requested information about specific MOUGlobal Link

transactions involving split routing and that Global Link has not provided responsive

information Global Link denies the remaining allegations in pazagraph NM and denies that

MOL is entitled to compensation

V Violations of the ShippinQ Act of 1984

A As described in Part IV above the Respondents engaged in awillful and delibetate

fraudulent scheme to obtain ocean transportation for property for less than the rates andlor

charges that would othenvise apply in violation of Section 10a1ofthe Shipping Act 46

USC 41102a

ANSWER Global Link neither admits nor denies the allegations ofpazagraph VA

insofar as they putport to state conclusions oflaw as to which no response is required

B The Respondents fraudulent actions and willful efforts to conceal information from

MOL in an effort to obtain better rates constituted a failure to establish observe and enforce just
and reasonable regulations and practices relating to or connected with receiving handling and

delivering property in violation of 5ection 10d1of the Shipping Act 46USC 41102c

ANSWER Global Link neither admits nor denies the allegations ofpazagraph VB

insofaz as they purport to state conclusions of law as to which no response is required

C Respondents fraudulent practices including the provision of false information and

documents to MOL violated 46CFR 51531ewhich prohibits the making or provision of

false or fraudulent claims or false information

ANSWER Global Link neither admits nor denies the allegations ofpazagraph VC

insofaz as they purport to state conclusions oflaw as to which no response is required

VI Iniurv to MOL

A As adirect result of1he violarions of the 1984 Act by the Respondents MOL was

underpaid by hundreds ofdollars per container causing MOL to suffer damages ofno less than

45 million The full extent ofdamages can only be determined after obtaining discovery and
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thereby securing information about the containers destinations and rates involved

ANSWER Global Link neither admits nor denies the allegations ofpazagraph VIA

insofar as they purport to state conclusions oflaw as to which no response is required Global

Link denies the remaining allegations in paragaph VIA

VII Praver for Relief

A Statement Regarding ADR Procedures Alternative dispute resolution procedures were

not used prior to filing the complaint and complainant has not consulted with the Commission

Dispute Resolution Specialist about utilizing altemative dispute resolution

ANSWER Global Link admits that alternative dispute resolution procedures were not

used prior to filing the complaint Global Link is without knowledge or information sufficient to

form abelief as to the truth ofthe remaining allegations of pazagraph VIIA

B WHEREFORE MOL prays that the Respondents be required to answer the chazges in

this Complaint that after due hearing and investigation an orderbe made commanding the

Respondents to cease and desist from the aforementioned violations ofthe Shipping Act and

Commission regulations and to establish and put in force such pracrices as the Commission

determines to be lawful and reasonable that an order be made commanding Respondents to pay

MOL reparations for violations ofthe Shipping Act plus interest costs and attomeysfees and

any other damages to be determined and that such other and further relief be granted as the

Commission determines to be proper fair and just in the circumstances

ANSWER The statements contained in paragraph VIIB set forfh ClaimanYs

Requested Relief to which no answer is required To the extent a response is required Global

Link denies that Claimant is entitled to the requested relief

C MOL requests ahearing on this matter and fiuther requests that the hearing be held in

Washington DC

ANSWER The statements contained in pazagraph VIIC set forth ClaimanYs

Requested Relief to which no answer is required To the extent a response is required Global

Link denies that Claimant is entitled to the requested relief

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

The Complaint is barred by the statue of limitations
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2 The Complaint is barted by estoppel in that MOL knowingly participated in and

failed to object to the alleged split mutingmisbooking andrerouting practices

The Complaint is barred by waiver in that MOL knew of participated in and

failed to object to the split routingmisbooking and4erouting practices

4 The Complaint is barred by MOLsunclean hands in that MOL knew of

approved and benefited from the alleged split routingmisbooking and Yerouting

practices MOL in fact sought to continue the practices even after the sale ofGlobal Link in

2006 because they preferred not to be bothered with negotiating amultiplicity of door points

The Complaint is barred by the doctrine of in pari delicto in that MOL knew of

failed to object to approved ofand benefited from the alleged split routingmisbooking

andrerouting pracrices

6 To the extent that Global Link is found liable for any ofthe allegations set forth in

the Complaint it is entitled to indemnification and at aminimum wntribution from Olympus

Growth Fund IIILP Olympus Executive Fund LPCJR World Enterprises Inc andorChad

J Rosenberg because the acts alleged were initiated and carried out by those individuals and

entities

Global Link hereby gives notice that it intends to rely on such otherafTirmative

defenses as may become available or appazent in the course ofdiscovery and therefore reserves

its right to amend the Answer to assert such defenses

GLOBAL LINKSCOUNTERCLAIM AGAINST MITSUIOSKLINES LTD

Global Link hereby submits its Counterclaim against MOL as follows

I Counter Comalainant

Global Link Logistics Inc Global Link is aDelawaze corporation licensed by the

Federal Maritime Commission Commission that operates as anonvessel operating common
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carrier It is an ocean transportation intermediary Global Links principal place ofbusiness is at

1990 Lakeside Pazkway Suite 300 Tucker Georgia It is the surviving entity referred to herein

as Global Link 2006 and created pursuant to the May 20 2006 Stock Purchase Ageement

II Counter Resaondent

The Counter Respondent MitsuiOSKLines Ltd MOL is a corporation organized

and existing under the laws of Japan MOL is avessel operating common cartier operating in the

US foreign trades

III Jurisdiction

The Counterclaim is being filed pursuant to section 11aof the Shipping Act 46USC

41301 Global Link seeks reparations and indemnification for the injuries caused it by MOL as

a result ofits violation of Sections 10b1and2A10d1and 10b4and 8 ofthe

Shipping Act 46USC 411041and2a41102c411044and 8

IV Statement of Facts

1 Global Link and MOL began doing business on or about May 11 2004

2 Since May of2004 MOL has entered into several service contracts with Global

Link

3 During the time MOL and Global Link were performing under these service

contracts MOL was awaze of Global links split routing practices and encouraged the

continuation of these practices rather than negotiating rates to door points served by Global Link

4 During the time MOL and Global Link were performing under these service

contracts MOL also failed to have suitable rates on file in its tariff for the commodities Global

Link was shipping to the door points served by Global Link As a result MOLs Cazgo NOS

rates may be applied to Global Links shipments in the event the Commission finds Global Link
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liable for the violations alleged in MOLs Complaint

V Violations of the ShioainQ Act of1984

MOLs knowledge and encouragement of Global Links split routing practices

constituted a violarion of Sections 10b1 and 2A of the Shipping Act 46 USC

411041and 2A and also constituted an unjust and unreasonable practice in violation of

Section 10d1ofthe Shipping Act 46USC 41102c MOLs failure to have suitable rates

on file in its tariff for Global Links shipments constitutes an unfair and unjustly discriminatory

practice in violation of Section 10b4of the Shipping Act 46USC 411044and an undue

and unreasonable prejudice or disadvantage to Global Link in violation ofSection 10b8ofthe

Shipping Act 48USC 411048

VI Injurv to Global Link

Global Link suffered hazm as a result of MOLs actions and is therefore entitled to

indemnification and repazations for its losses from MOL

VII Praver for Relief

WHEREFORE Global Link prays that MOL be required to answer the chazges in this

CounterComplaint that after due hearing and investigation an order be made commanding

MOL to pay Global Link reparations for violations of the Shipping Act plus interest costs and

attorneysfees and any other damages to be determined and that such other and further relief be

ganted as the Commission determines to be proper fair and just under the circumstances

GLOBAL LINKSCROSS CLAIMS AGAINST
OLYMPUS GROWTH FUND IIILPOLYMPUS EXECUTIVE FUNDLPCJR

WORLD ENTERPRISES INC AND CHAD J ROSENBERG

Global Link incorporates paragaphs IA through VIIC above as if fully set forth herein

Pursuant to secrion 11aofthe Shipping Act 46USC 41301 and Rule 13gofthe Federal
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Rules ofCivil Procedure Respondent and Cross Complainant Global LinkIogistics Inc

Global Link for its claims against Respondents and Cross Respondents Olympus Growth

Fund IIILPOGF Olympus Executive Fund LPOEF CJR World Enterprises Inc

CJR and Chad J Rosenberg Rosenberg collectively Cross Respondents alleges as

follows

SUMMARY

MOL alleges that Global Link and other Respondents engaged in a fraudulent

scheme referred to herein as split muting to obtain ocean transportation for property for less

than the rates andor chazges that would otherwise apply violating Sections 10a1 and

10d1 ofthe Shipping Act MOL further alleges that Global Link and other Respondents

provided false information to MOL violating 46CFR 51531e To the extent alleged

conduct violating the Shipping Act or 46CFR 51531esupports MOLsclaim for damages

that conduct was directed by and benefited Cross Respondents not Global Link

2 Global Links cturent management and owners obtained their interests in the

company after purchasing those interests from Sellers as defined in the May 20 2006 Stock

Purchase Agreement SPA Cross Respondents OGF OEF and CJR are Sellers pursuant to

the SPA Cross Respondent Rosenberg is the alterego and guazantor ofCJR and served as the

director and CEO ofGlobal Link prior to the 2006 sale to its cmrent owners

3 On or about August 31 2007 Global Link and its pazent Golden Gate Logisrics

Inc initiated an azbitration proceeding before the American Arbitration Association AAA

against Cross Respondents based on the Sellers and prior managemenYs concealment of and

failure to disclose the split routing practice prior to the 2006 sale On February 2 2009 a

threemember Arbitration Panel AAA Panel awarded Global Link and its pazent company a
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Partial Final Award of12 million for fraud and breach of warranty against Cross Respondents

OGF OEF and CJR and the other respondents named therein The AAA Panel then awarded

Global Link prejudgment interest costs and expenses raising the Final Awazd to

1620212647

4 The AAA PanelsAwazd demonstrates that 1 the Cross Respondents and their

agents instituted directed and benefited from the split routing practice and 2 the split

routing practice was improperly concealed from the current owners and managers ofGlobal

Link by Cross Respondents and their agents Further as the AAA Panel held the new owners

and the surviving Global Link entity werenot at fault they instead inherited apractice from

Cross Respondents and ended the practice as soon as was feasible Accordingly liability to third

parties arising from the split routing practice if any properly lies with the Cross Respondents

and not with Global Link If Global Link is found liable however Cross Respondents aze liable

to Global Link for fraud contractual indemnification or at aminimum contribution

THE PARTIES

5 Cross Complainant Global Link Logistics Inc Global Link is a Delawaze

corporation with its principal place of business at 1990 Lakeside Parkway Suite 300 Tucker

Georgia It is the surviving entity created pursuant to the May 20 2006 Stock Purchase

Agreement

6 Cross Respondent Olympus Growth Fund III LPOGF is a private equity

investment fund orgazrized as a Delawaze limited partnership OGF is wntrolled by its general

partner OGP III LLC a Delaware limited liability company on behalfof its investors who are

its limited partners and is managed by Olympus Advisory Partners Inc OGFs principal place

of business is Stamford Connecticut Between May 2003 and June 2006 OGF owned 749of
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the shazes ofHoldings which it sold to Global Link asaSeller pursuant to the May 20 2006

Stock Purchase Ageement The Arbitration Panel found OGF liable to Global Link

7 The AAA Panel found OGF liable to Global Link for breaches ofwarranty and

for fraud related to split muting

8 Cross Respondent Olympus Executive FundLP OEF is a private equity

inveshnent fund organized as a Delawaze limited pattnership OEF is controlled by its general

partner OEF LPa Delawaze limited partnership and is managed by Olympus Advisory

Partners Inc OEFsprincipal place ofbusiness is Stamford Connecticut Between May 2003

and June 2006 OEF owned049l0ofthe shazes ofHoldings which it sold to Global Link as a

Seller pursuant to the May 20 2006 Stock Pwchase Ageement

9 The AAA Panel found OEF liable to Global Link for breaches ofwarranty and for

fraud related to split routing

10 Cmss Respondent Chad J Rosenberg Rosenberg is aresident ofGeorgia

Rosenberg served as CEO of Global Link Logistics Inc unti12003 and as aDirector and CEO

from 2003 unti12006 when he sold his interest in the Company

11 The AAA Panel found that Rosenberg improperly failed to disclose evidence of

split routing to Global Links purchasers

12 Cross Respondent CJR World Enterprises IncCJR is a Florida corporation

controlledby Rosenberg CJR owned 2064l0of the shazes ofHoldings which it sold to Global

Link asaSeller pursuant to the May 20 2006 Stock Purchase Agreement The AAA Panel

found CJR liable to Global Link for breaches ofwarranty and fraud related to split routing

13 Rosenberg completely dominates and controls C7R to such an extent that CJR has

no independent existence and is the alter ego ofRosenberg Rosenberg is also the guarantor of

266310V1 15



CJR under 112ofRosenbergsMay 20 2006 Release ConfidentialityNonCompete and

NonSolicitation Ageement and 1010of the May 20 2006 Stock Purchase Agreement

JURISDICTION

14 These Cross Claims aze being filed pursuant to section 11aofthe Shipping Act

46USC 41301 and Rule 13g ofthe Federal Rules ofCivil Procedure To the extent the

Commission finds Global Link liable for the actions alleged Global Link seeks repazation and

indemnification or at a minimum contribution for the injuries caused it by Cross Respondents as

a result oftheir violations ofthe Shipping Act or 46CFR 51531e

APPLICABLE FACTS

15 As Sellecs Cross Respondents OGF OEF CJR and Rosenberg as CJRs alter

ego and guazantor agreed to indemnify Global Link and its affiliates for breaches of certain

representations in the May 20 2006 Stock Purchase Agreement These representations included

a A representation that the Company was in wmpliance with all applicable

laws and regulations of foreign federal state provincial and local governments and all agencies

thereof which affect the business operations assets or leased real properties of the Company or

its Subsidiaries and to which the Company or its Subsidiaries may be subject including the rules

and regulations ofthe Federal Matitime Commission the Shipping Act of 1984

b A representation that the Financial Statements provided to Buyers present

fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results ofoperations ofthe Company

and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole as ofthe times and for the periods referred to

therein

16 The Stock PurchaseAgeement is a valid and binding contract and Global Link

and itsafiliates fully performed pursuant to the contract
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17 Global Link and its parent Golden Gate Logisrics Inc initiated an arbitration

proceeding against Cross Respondents and others by submitting aDemand for Arbiuation to the

AAA on or about August 31 2007

18 The azbitration parties subsequently conducted substantial documentary and

deposition discovery submitted prehearing briefs to the threepersonAAA Panel and submitted

aJoint Statement ofUndisputed Facts to the Panel Seven days ofheatings wete held on

October 2024and November56 2008 By agreement ofthe parties all hearings took place in

New York City In addition the parties submitted excerpts from fourteen depositions including

videotapes of eight depositions After the conclusion ofthe hearings the Panel requested certain

documentary and other information including proposed findings offacts and conclusions oflaw

as well as answers to certain legal questions The final written submissions from the parties were

sent to the Panel on November 24 and November 25 2008 ThePanel then heard oral closing

azguments on December 12 2008 and closed the record at that time

19 On February 2 2009 the Panel issued its 60page Partial Final Award The

Panels Partial Final Awazd resolved all claims asserted and submitted in the arbitration except

for the awazd ofprejudgment interest and the allocation of costs pursuant to the SPA The Panel

requested further briefing from the parties on those two issues After receiving that further

briefing from the parties the Panel rendered its Final Award on Mazch 15 2009

20 The AAA Panels rulings and Awazds aze final adjudications and are fully binding

on Cross Respondents as amatter of law

21 The AAA Panel held that the practice of split routing violated FMC rule

51531eand thus concluded that Section415of the Stock Purchase Agreementhad been

breached
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22 The AAA Panel further held that the CompanysFinancial Statements did not

fairly present Global Linksfinancial position and results of operations for those periods in the

absence ofa disclosure ofthe split routing practice and its economic effects on those financial

statements

23 The AAA Panel also held that the Cross Respondents were liable to Global Link

for fraud Cross Respondents and other former officers ofthe company failed to disclose and

concealed the split routing practice during due diligence The Panel held that Rosenberg in

pazticulaz failed to disclose the practice to Global Links Buyers even though he

attended the March 22 management presentation the agenda for which

contained several topics to which split routing was highly relevant and he must

have known that adiscussion ofthose topics would be incomplete and misleading
without an exposition ofthe split routing practice its uses variations and

economic significance

24 Cross Respondents OGF OEF CJR and Rosenberg as CJRs alterego and

guarantor agreed to indemnify Global Link for any losses outofpocket costs or expenses

liabilities or other damages suffered as a result of any breach

25 Further Cross Respondents OGF OEF CJR and Rosenberg as CJRs alterego

and guazantor agreed that any liability pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement indemnity

provisions shall be in addition to and not exclusive of any other liability that such party may

have at law or equity based on such partys fraudulent acts or fraudulent omissions Cross

Respondents OGF OEF CJR and Rosenberg as C7Rs alterego and guazantor also agreed no

provisions ofthe Stock Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to limiti the amounts of

recovery sought or awarded in any claim for fraud iithe time period during which aclaim

for fraud may be brought or iii the recourse which the Buyer Indcmnified Parties may seek

against aSeller
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FIRST COUNTERCLAIM

Indemnificarion for Breaches of Warranty and Fraud

26 Global Link repeats and realleges each ofthe allegations contained in pazagraphs

121

27 Global Link denies liability to MOL and denies that MOL has stated any claim for

which relief may be granted Nevertheless if the Commission finds Global Link liable to MOL

Cross Respondents aze in tum liable to Global Link for complete indemnification for any liability

suffered by Global Link including attomey fees and costs pursuant to

i the teims ofthe May 20 2006 Stock Purchase Ageement and

ii Delaware law based on the Cross Resgondents and their agents fraudulent

concealment ofthe split routing practice as established in the binding AAA arbitration among

the Cross Respondents and Global Link

WHEREFORE Global Link respectfully requests the following relief

a The entry of ajudgment awazding complete indemnificarion for any

liability suffered by Global Link including fees and costs on the claims asserted in MOLs

Complaint

b Postjudgment interest and

c Such further or additional relief as the Commission may deem just and

appropriate

SECOND COUNTERCLAIM
ContribuNon

28 Global Link repeats and realleges each ofthe allegations contained in pazagraphs

121

29 Global Link denies liability to MOL Ifthe Commission does find Global Link
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liable however Global Link and Cross Respondents are jointly liable and Cross Respondents

should be obligated to contribute payment for their respective shazes of fault Global Link will

suffer damages if required to pay more than its proportionate shaze ofliability

WHEREFORE Global Link respectfully requests the followingrelief

a The entry of ajudgment awazding contribution in the amount of any

payment by Global Link in excess ofits share of liability including fees and costs on the claims

asserted in MOLs Complaint

b Postyudgment interest and

c Such fiirther or additional relief as the Commission may deem just and

appropriate

Dated June 17 2009 GKG LawPC

OfCounsel

Jeffrey JBushofsky
Amanda N Raad

ROPES GRAY LLP

I 11 South Wacker Drive 46 Floor

Chicago IL 60606

3128451200

By V 1
David P Street

Brendan Collins

GKG Law PC

1054 ThirtyFirst Street NW
Suite 200

Washington DC200074492

2023425220

2023425209faac

dstreetcgkglawcom
bcollinsklawcom

Attarneysfor Respondent
GlobalLinkLogistics Inc
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VERIFICATION

State of

County of

GEORGIA

DeKalb
ss

Christine Callahan being firstduly sworn on oath deposes and says that she is the Chief

Executive Officer of Respondent and is the person who signed the foregoing Answer

AffirmaUve Defenses Counterclaim and Cross Claims that she has read the Answer

Aflirmative Defenses Counterclaim and Cross Claims and that the facts stated therein upon

information received from others she be vs o

be
Callahan

Subscribed andsm to before me a notary public in and for the State of Georgia

County ofDeKalb this day ofJune 200

L

NOTARY PUBLIC
For the State of

County of

My Commission expires CtTI Ctl6COMiT1G GE01101A
AA1fCOMN6910NE7It8
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Ido hereby certify that Ihave delivered a true and correct copy ofthe foregoing document

to the following addressees at the addresses stated by depositing same in the United States mail first

class postage prepaid this 17th day ofJune 2009

Marc J Fink

Anne E Mickey
Heather M Spring
SHER BLACKWELL LLP

1850 M Street NW Suite 900

Washington DC 20036

Attorneys forMitsui OSKLines Ltd

Cazlos Rodriguez
RODRIGUEZODONNELL

GONZALEZ WILLIAMS PC

1250 Connecticut Avenue NW Suite 200

Washington DC 20036

Attorney for CJR World Enterprises
and Cltad J Rosenberg

Warren L Dean Jr

Robert A Shapiro
Sean McGowan

Ryan K Manger
THOMPSON COBURN LLP

1904 K Street NW Suite 600

Washington DC 20006

Attorneys for Olympus Growth Fund III LP
Olymps Executive Fund LP Louis J

Mischianti David Cardenas and
Keith Heffernan

Robert S Moms Managing Partner

OLYMPUSPARTNERS

Metro Center

One Station Place

Stamford CT 06902

Notpresently represented by counsel
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